

ORIGINAL DIM

BY-LAWS

064-01-0864

OF

CREEKWOOD VILLAGE HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

Members - (Unit Owners)

SECTION 1. Eligibility. The Members of Creekwood Village Homeowners Association, Inc., a Texas nonprofit Corporation, shall consist of the respective Unit Owners of the Property known as Creekwood Village Condominiums, located at Tangle Brush Drive, Woodlands, Texas, in accordance with the respective percentages of ownership interest in the Common Elements with the respective Property owned by the respective Unit Owners (these and other terms are used in these By-Laws as they are defined in the Declaration of Condominium for Creekwood Village, which Declaration is recorded in the Office of the County Clerk of Montgomery County, Texas. The word "member" or "members" as used in these By-Laws means and shall refer to "Unit Owner" or "Unit Owners", as the case may be, as defined in the Declaration). If a Unit Owner is a corporation or partnership, the member may be an officer, partner or employee of such Unit Owner.

SECTION 2. Succession. The membership of each Unit Owner shall terminate when he ceases to be a Unit Owner, and upon the sale, transfer or other disposition of his ownership interest in the Property, his membership in the Association shall automatically be transferred to the new Unit Owner succeeding to such ownership interests.

SECTION 3. Regular Meetings. The first regular annual meeting of Unit Owners (the "First Meeting") may be held, subject to the terms hereof, on any date, at the option of the Board; provided, however, that said First Meeting shall be held not less than thirty (30) days and not more than one hundred twenty (120) days after the earlier to occur of January 1, 1983, or the date on which this Declarant has sold and delivered its deed for at least 51% of the undivided ownership of the Common Elements, as set forth in Exhibit "C" and "E" of the Declaration. Subsequent to the First Meeting, there shall be a regular annual meeting of Unit Owners held each year on a date which is within thirty (30) days of the anniversary of the First Meeting. All

EXHIBIT F

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0865

such meetings of Unit Owners shall begin at a reasonable hour and shall be held at such place in Montgomery County, Texas, and on such date as may be specified in a written notice of the meeting, which shall be given to all Unit Owners at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the meeting.

SECTION 4. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Unit Owners may be called by the President or by a majority of the directors of the Board, or by Unit Owners having at least two-fifths (2/5) of the votes entitled to be at such meeting. Said special meetings shall be called by delivering written notice to all Unit Owners not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of said meeting, stating the date, time and place of said special meeting and the matters to be considered.

SECTION 5. Delivery of Notice of Meetings. Notices of meetings may be delivered either personally or by mail to a Unit Owner at the address given to the Board by said Unit Owner for such purpose, or to the Unit Owner's Unit, if no address for such purpose has been given to the Board.

SECTION 6. Waiver of Notice. Any Unit Owner may at any time waive notice of any meetings of the Unit Owner in writing, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

SECTION 7. Voting. The aggregate number of votes for all Unit Owners shall be one hundred (100), and shall be divided among the respective Unit Owners, in accordance with their respective percentages of Ownership interest in the Common Elements. If any Unit Owner consists of more than one person, the voting rights of such Unit Owner shall not be divided but shall be exercised as if the Unit Owner consisted of only one person in accordance with the proxy or other designation made by the persons constituting such Unit Owner. The Declarant may exercise the voting rights with respect to Units owned by it.

SECTION 8. Quorum. A quorum of Unit Owners for any meeting shall be constituted by Unit Owners represented in person or by proxy and holding a majority of the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting.

SECTION 9. Proxies. A Unit Owner may vote by proxy at any meeting of Unit Owners, provided such proxy is in writing and signed by the Unit Owner or his duly authorized attorney-in-fact. All such proxies shall be filed with the Secretary and shall be retained in the records of the Association.

SECTION 10. Votes in the Event of Multiple Ownership of a Unit. In the event a Unit is owned by more than one person, if such persons cannot agree upon the exercise of their right to vote pursuant to these By-Laws, each person shall have a fractional vote based upon his fractional share of ownership of that Unit. A co-owner of a Unit may permit the other co-owner of the Unit to vote his interest by furnishing to the other co-owner with a proxy. In the absence of any co-owner, a vote for the whole Unit cast by a co-owner shall be held to be a valid proxy of the absent co-owner, unless challenged at the time the vote is cast.

SECTION 11. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Unit Owners shall be as follows, to the extent required:

- (a) Roll call;
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice;
- (c) Reading of minutes of preceding meetings;
- (d) Reports of officers;
- (e) Report of Board of Directors;
- (f) Report of committees;
- (g) Election of members of the Board of Directors;
- (h) Unfinished business;
- (i) New business;
- (j) Adjournment.

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0867

ARTICLE II

Board of Directors

SECTION 1. Number, Election and Term of Office.

The Board of Directors of the Association (referred to herein as the "Board") shall consist of three (3) members (hereinafter referred to as "directors"). Directors shall be elected at the regular annual meeting of Association members by the vote of Unit Owners; except that the directors listed in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association (hereinafter called "members of the First Board") shall be appointed by the Declarant. Those candidates for election as director receiving the greatest percentage of votes cast either in person or by proxy at the meeting shall be elected. Subject to the provisions of the last two sentences of this paragraph, the members of the First Board shall serve until the first regular meeting of members held after January 1, 1983. At such meeting, a new Board consisting of three directors shall be elected by the Unit Owners; one member of such Board shall hold office for a term of one year and until his successor shall be elected and qualified, one other member of such board shall hold office for a term of two years and until his successor shall be elected and qualified, and one other member of such board shall hold office for a term of three years and until his successor shall be elected and qualified. Thereafter, every director shall hold office for the term of three years and until his successor shall be elected and qualified. Upon the sale by the Declarant of Units which correspond, in the aggregate, to 51% of the undivided ownership of the Common Elements, as set forth in Exhibit "C" and "E", of the Declaration, Unit Owners other than Declarant shall be entitled to elect one director at a regular or special meeting of members and simultaneously with the election of such director, one member of the First Board, to be selected by Declarant, shall resign. Upon the sale by the Declarant of Units which correspond, in the aggregate, to 90% of the Undivided ownership of the Common Elements, as set forth in Exhibit "C" of the Declaration, Unit Owners other than Declarant shall be entitled to elect one additional director at a regular or special meeting of the members, and simultaneously with election of such director, one additional member of the First Board, to be selected by Declarant shall resign.

SECTION 2. Qualification. Except for members of the First Board, each director shall be a Unit Owner or the spouse of a Unit Owner (or, if a Unit Owner is a trustee of a trust, a director may be a beneficiary of such trust, and if a Unit Owner or such a beneficiary is a corporation or partnership, a director may be an officer, partner or employee of such Unit Owner or beneficiary). If a director shall cease to meet such qualifications during his term, he shall thereupon cease to be a director and his place on the Board shall be deemed vacant.

SECTION 3. Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining members thereof, except that a vacant position on the Board which was last filled by a member of the First Board may be filled by a person appointed by the Declarant. Any director so elected or appointed to fill a vacancy shall hold office for a term equal to the unexpired term of the director whom he succeeds.

SECTION 4. Meetings. A regular annual meeting of the Board shall be held within ten (10) days following the regular annual meeting of Unit Owners. Special meetings of the Board shall be held upon a call by the President or by a majority of the Board on not less than forty-eight (48) hours notice in writing to each director, delivered personally or by mail or telegram. Any director may waive notice of a meeting, or consent to the holding of a meeting without notice, or consent to any action proposed to be taken by the Board without a meeting. A director's attendance at a meeting shall constitute his waiver of notice of said meeting.

total undivided ownership of the Common Elements. Failure to attend three consecutive meetings of the Board shall be deemed to be cause for removal. Any member of the Board of Directors whose removal has been proposed by the Unit Owners shall be given an opportunity to be heard at this meeting.

SECTION 6. Compensation. Directors shall receive no compensation for their services as directors, unless expressly provided for in resolutions duly adopted by a majority of the Unit Owners.

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0869

SECTION 7. Quorum. Two (2) directors shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 8. Fidelity Bonds. The Board may require that all officers and employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

SECTION 9. Powers and Duties. The Board shall have the following powers and duties:

- (a) to elect and remove the officers of the Association as hereinafter provided;
- (b) to administer the affairs of the Association and the Property;
- (c) to engage the services of an agent (hereinafter sometimes called the "Managing Agent") to maintain, repair, replace; administer and operate the Property or any part thereof for all of the Unit Owners, upon such terms and for such compensation and with such authority as the Board may approve; provided, however, that the First Board, appointed as provided herein, shall have authority to ratify and approve a management agreement between the Association and a management corporation, which may be a corporation related to the Declarant, to act as Managing Agent for the Property, the initial contract not to exceed three (3) years.
- (d) to formulate policies for the administration, management and operation of the Property and the Common Elements thereof;
- (e) to adopt rules and regulations, with written notice thereof to all Unit Owners, governing the administration, management, operation and use of the Property and the Common Elements, and to amend such rules and regulations from time to time;

- (f) to provide for the maintenance, repair, and replacement of the Common Elements and payments therefor, and to approve payment vouchers or to delegate such approval to the officers or the manager or Managing Agent;
- (g) to provide for the designation, hiring and removal of employees and other personnel, including accountants and attorneys, and to engage or contract for the services of others, and to make purchases for the maintenance, repair, replacement, administration, management and operation of the Property and the Common Elements, and to delegate any such powers to the Managing Agent (and any such employees or other personnel who may be the employees of a Managing Agent);
- (h) to appoint committees of the Board and to delegate to such committees the Board's authority to carry out certain duties of the Board;
- (i) to determine the fiscal year of the Association and to change said fiscal year from time to time as the Board deems advisable;
- (j) to estimate the amount of the annual budget, and to provide the manner of assessing and collecting from the Unit Owners their respective shares of such estimated expenses, as hereinafter provided;
- (k) to enter into any lease or purchase agreement for the lease or purchase of premises suitable for use as custodian apartments, upon such terms as the Board may approve;

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0871

- (l) unless otherwise provided herein or in the Declaration, to comply with the instructions of a majority of the Unit Owners (as said majority is defined in Paragraph 1.(n) of the Declaration), as expressed in a resolution duly adopted at any annual or special meeting of the Unit Owners;
- (m) to enter such contracts and agreements relating to the providing of maintenance management and operational services outside the Property and for the providing of heated and pumped domestic water to improvements on the Property as the Board may deem advisable;
- (n) to enter such leases of portions of the Common Elements as the Board may deem advisable;
- (o) to exercise all other powers and duties of the Council of Co-Owners or Unit Owners as a group referred to in the Act, and all powers and duties of a Board of Directors referred to in the Declaration or these By-Laws;
- (p) purchasing or leasing or otherwise acquiring in the name of the Board of Directors or its designee corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Unit Owners, Units offered for sale or lease or surrendered by their owners to the Board of Directors;
- (q) purchasing of Units at foreclosures or other judicial sales in the name of the Board of Directors, or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Unit Owners;



- (r) selling, leasing, mortgaging, voting the votes pertinent to (other than for election of members of the Board of Directors), or otherwise dealing with Units acquired by and subleasing Units leased by the Board of Directors or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Unit Owners; and
- (s) obtaining of insurance for the Property, including the Units, pursuant to provisions in the Declaration of Condominium for Creekwood Village.

SECTION 10. Non-Delegation. Nothing in this Article or elsewhere in these By-Laws shall be considered to grant to the Board, the Association or to the officers of the Association any powers or duties which have been reserved or retained by the Declarant, or which, by law, have been delegated to the Unit Owners.

### ARTICLE III

#### Officers

SECTION 1. Designation. At each regular annual meeting of the Board, the directors present at said meeting shall elect the following officers of the Association by a majority vote.

- (a) a President who shall be a director and who shall preside over the meetings of the Board and of the Unit Owners, and who shall be the chief executive officer of the Association, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the Unit Owners from time to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.
- (b) a Secretary, who shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board and of the Unit Owners, and who shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary, and who may be a representative of the Managing Agent;

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0873

- (c) A Treasurer, who shall be responsible for financial records and books of account and the manner in which such records and books are kept and reported; and
- (d) such additional officers as the Board shall see fit to elect.

SECTION 2. Powers. The respective officers shall have the general powers usually vested in such officers; provided that the Board may delegate any specific powers to any other officer or impose such limitations or restrictions upon the powers of any officer as the Board may see fit.

SECTION 3. Term of Office. Each officer shall hold office for the term of one year and until his successor shall have been appointed or elected and qualified.

SECTION 4. Vacancies. Vacancies in any office shall be filled by the Board by a majority vote of the remaining members thereof at a special meeting of said Board. Any officer so elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for a term equal to the unexpired term of the officer he succeeds. Any officer may be removed for cause at any time by vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the total membership of the Board at a special meeting thereof.

SECTION 5. Compensation. The officers shall receive no compensation for their services as officers, unless expressly provided for in a resolution duly adopted by a majority of the Unit Owners.

SECTION 1. Annual Budget. The Board shall cause to be prepared an estimated annual budget for each fiscal year of the Association. Such budget shall take into account the estimated common expenses and cash requirements for the year, including but not limited to salaries, wages, payroll taxes,

legal and accounting fees, working capital fund, supplies, materials, parts, services, maintenance, repairs, replacements, landscaping, insurance, fuel, power and all other common expenses. To the extent that the assessments and other cash income collected from the Unit Owners during the preceding year shall be more or less than the expenditures for such preceding year, the surplus or deficit, as the case may be, shall also be taken into account. The annual budget shall also take into account the estimated net available cash income for the year from the lease, operation or use of the Common Elements. The annual budget shall provide for a reserve for contingencies for the year and a reserve for replacements, in reasonable amounts as determined by the Board. The annual budget shall not require a assessment of Unit Owners for common expenses in an amount exceeding one hundred ten per cent (110%) of the common expenses for the preceding year unless such budget is approved by a majority vote of Unit Owners.

SECTION 2. Assessments. The estimated annual budget for each fiscal year shall be approved by the Board, and copies thereof shall be furnished by the Board to each Unit Owner, not later than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of such year. On or before the first day of the first month and of each succeeding month of the year covered by the annual budget, each Unit Owner shall pay, as his respective monthly assessment for the common expenses, one-twelfth (1/12) of his proportionate share of the common expenses for such year as shown by the annual budget; provided, however, that the Declarant's obligation to make such payments shall be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10. of the Declaration. Such proportionate share for each Unit Owner shall be in accordance with his respective ownership interest in the Common Elements, as set forth in Exhibit "C" of the Declaration. In the event that the Board shall not approve an estimated annual budget or shall fail to determine new monthly assessments for any year, or shall be delayed in doing so, each Unit Owner shall continue to pay each month the amount of his respective monthly assessment as last determined. Each Unit Owner shall pay his monthly assessment on or before the first day of each month to the Managing Agent or as may be otherwise directed by the Board. No Unit Owner shall be relieved of his obligation to pay his assessment by abandoning or not using his Unit, the Common Elements, or the Limited Common Elements.

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0875

SECTION 3. Partial Year or Month. For the first fiscal year, the annual budget shall be as approved by the First Board. If such first fiscal year, or any succeeding fiscal year, shall be less than a full year, then the monthly assessments for each Unit Owner shall be proportionate to the number of months and days in such period covered by such budget. Commencing with the date that a Unit Owner acquires ownership of his Unit, each Unit Owner, shall pay his assessment for the following month or fraction of a month, which assessment shall be in proportion to his respective ownership interest in the Common Elements and the number of months and days remaining of the period covered by the current annual budget, and which assessment shall be as computed by the Board.

SECTION 4. Annual Report. Within ninety (90) days after the end of each fiscal year covered by an annual budget, or as soon thereafter as shall be practicable the Board shall cause to be furnished to each Unit Owner a statement for such year so ended, showing the receipts and expenditures and such other information as the Board may deem desirable.

SECTION 5. Supplemental Budget. In the event that during the course of any year, it shall appear to the Board that the monthly assessments, determined in accordance with the estimated annual budget for such year, are insufficient or inadequate to cover the estimated common expenses for the remainder of such year, then the Board shall prepare and approve a supplemental budget covering the estimated deficiency for the remainder of such year, copies of which supplemental budget shall be furnished to each Unit Owner, and thereupon a supplemental assessment shall be made on each Unit Owner for his proportionate share of such supplemental budget.

SECTION 6. Expenditures. Except for the Management Agreement described in Article II, Section 8. (c) hereof and expenditures and contracts specifically authorized by the Declaration and By-Laws, the Board shall not approve any expenditure in excess of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000.00), unless required for emergency repair, protection or operation of the Common Elements or Limited Common Elements, nor enter any contract for more than five (5) years without the prior approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the total ownership of the Common Elements.

SECTION 7. Lien. It shall be the duty of every Unit Owner to pay his proportionate share of the common expenses, as provided in the Declaration, and as assessed in the manner herein provided.

If any Unit Owner shall fail or refuse to make any such payment of the Common Expenses when due, the amount thereof together with interest thereon at the maximum lawful rate of interest per annum after said common expenses become due and payable, shall constitute a lien, as provided in the Declaration, enforceable by the Board, on the interest of such Unit Owner in the Property; provided, however, that such lien shall be subordinate to the lien of a prior recorded first Mortgage on the interest of such Unit Owner, except for the amount of the proportionate share of common expenses which are due and payable from and after the date on which such Mortgage owner or holder either takes possession of the Unit, accepts a conveyance of any interest therein (other than as security) or files suit to foreclose its Mortgage or cause a receiver to be appointed to take possession of the Unit. The provisions of this paragraph of this Section 7 shall not be amended, changed, modified or rescinded in any way without the prior written consent of all holders of record or Mortgages against Units.

The Association or its successors and assigns, or the Board or its agents, shall have the right to maintain a suit to foreclose any such lien for unpaid assessment, and there shall be added to the amount due the costs of said suit and other fees and expenses, together with interest and reasonable attorney's fees to be fixed by the court. The Board or the Association shall have the authority to exercise and enforce any and all rights and remedies as provided for in the Act, the Declaration or these By-Laws, or as are otherwise available at law or in equity, for the collection of all unpaid assessments.

In addition to the lien, a late charge of not more than \$25.00 shall be due in the event the assessments have not been paid prior to the 15th day after the date which such assessment was due.

SECTION 8. Records and Statements of Account. The Board shall cause to be kept the records required by the Act and detailed and accurate records of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements, specifying and itemizing the common expenses incurred. Payment vouchers may be approved in such manner as the Board may determine.

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0877

The Board shall, upon receipt of ten (10) days' written notice to it or the Association and upon payment of a reasonable fee, furnish to any Unit Owner a statement of his account setting forth the amount of any unpaid assessments or other charges due and owing from such Owner.

SECTION 9. Discharge of Liens. The Board may cause the Association to discharge any mechanic's lien or other encumbrance which in the opinion of the Board may constitute a lien against the Property or the Common Elements, rather than a lien against only a particular Unit ownership. When less than all the Unit Owners are responsible for the existence of any such lien, the Unit Owners responsible shall be jointly and severally liable for the amount necessary to discharge the same and for all costs and expenses, including attorney's fees, incurred by reason of such lien.

SECTION 10. Holding of Funds. All funds collected hereunder shall be held and expended for the purposes designated herein and in the Declaration, and (except for such a special assessments as may be levied hereunder and under the Declaration against less than all the Unit Owners and for such adjustments as may be required to reflect delinquent or prepaid assessments) shall be deemed to be held for the benefit, use and account of all the Unit Owners in the percentages set forth in Exhibit ---- of the Declaration.

#### ARTICLE V

##### Use and Occupancy Restrictions

SECTION 1. General. Each Unit Owner shall comply with the use and occupancy restrictions set forth in the Declaration and The Woodlands Covenants. No unlawful, noxious or offensive activities shall be carried on in any Unit or elsewhere on the Property, nor shall anything be done therein or thereon which shall constitute a nuisance or which shall in the judgement of the Board cause unreasonable noise or disturbance to other.

SECTION 2. Use by Declarant. During the period of sale by the Declarant of any Units, the Declarant and its agents, employees, contractors and sub-contractors, and their respective agents and employees, shall be entitled to access, ingress to and egress from the Buildings and Property as may be required for purposes of said sale of Units. While the Declarant owns any of the Units and until each Unit owned by it is occupied by the purchasers, the Declarant and its employees may use and show one or more of such unsold or unoccupied Units as a model Unit or Units and may use one or more of such unsold or unoccupied Units as a sales office, and may maintain customary signs in connection therewith.

## ARTICLE VI

## Contractual Powers

No contract or other transaction between the Association and one or more of its directors or between this corporation and any corporation, firm or association in which one or more of the directors of this corporation are directors, or are financially interested, is void or voidable because such director or directors are present at the meeting of the Board or a committee thereof which authorizes or approves the contract or transaction or because his or their votes are counted, if the circumstances specified in either of the following subparagraphs exist:

- (a) the fact of the common directorship or financial interest is disclosed or known to the Board or committee and noted in the minutes and the Board or committee authorizes, approves or ratifies the contract or transaction in good faith by a vote sufficient for the purpose without counting the vote or votes of such director or directors; or
- (b) the contract or transaction is just and reasonable as to the corporation at the time it is authorized or approved.

Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board or a committee thereof which authorizes, approves or ratifies a contract or transaction.

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0879

ARTICLE VII

Amendments

Any modification or amendment of these By-Laws shall be made only upon a majority vote of the members of such majority being determined by references to Exhibit "C" and "E" of the Declaration. Such amendment shall be maintained in the corporate records of the Association.

ARTICLE VIII

Indemnification

SECTION 1. General. The Association may indemnify and hold harmless each of its directors and officers, each member of any committee appointed pursuant to the By-Laws of the Association, and the Board, and Declarant, against all contractual and other liabilities to others arising out of contracts made by or other acts of such directors, Board, officers, committee members, or Declarant, on behalf of the Unit Owners, or arising out of their status as directors, Board, officers, committee members, or Declarant, unless any such contract or act shall have been made fraudulently or with gross negligence or criminal intent. It is intended that the foregoing indemnification shall include indemnification against all costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, counsel fee, amounts of judgements paid and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred in connection with the defense of any claim, action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or other in which any such director, officer, Board, committee member, or Declarant; provided, however, that such indemnity shall not be operative with respect to (a) any matter as to which such person shall have been finally adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or fraud in the performance of his duties as such director, officer, Board, committee member, or Declarant, or (b) any matter settled or compromised, unless, in the opinion of independent counsel selected by or in a manner determined by the Board, there is no reasonable ground for such persons being adjudged liable for gross negligence or fraud in the performance of his duties as such director, officer, Board, committee, member, or Declarant.

SECTION 2. Success on Merits. To the extent that the Declarant or a member of the Board of Directors or any officer of the Association or a member of any committee



appointed pursuant to the By-Laws of the Association has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in Section 1., or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, he shall be indemnified against expenses, (including attorney's fees) actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection therewith.

SECTION 3. Advance Payment. Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Association in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding as authorized by the Board of Directors in the specific case upon receipt of any undertaking by or on behalf of the person or entity seeking such indemnification or payment in advance to repay such amount unless it shall ultimately be determined that he is entitled to be indemnified by the Association as authorized in this Article VIII.

SECTION 4. Miscellaneous. The Association and the Board shall have the power to raise and the responsibility for raising, by special assessment or otherwise, any sums required to discharge its obligations under this Article; provided, however, that the liability of any Unit Owner arising out of any contract made by or other acts of the directors, Board, officers, members of such committees, or Declarant, or out of the aforesaid indemnity in favor of the directors, Board, officers, members of such committees, or Declarant, shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability hereunder as said Unit Owner's percentage of interest in the Common Elements bears to the total percentage interest of all the Unit Owners in the Common Elements. Every agreement made by the directors, Board, officers, members of such committees, or Declarant or by the Managing Agent on behalf of the Unit Owners shall provide that the directors, Board, officers, members of such committees, Declarant or the Managing Agent, as the case may be, are acting only as agents for the Unit Owners and shall have no personal liability thereunder (except as Unit Owners), and that each Unit Owner's liability thereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his percentage of interest of all Unit Owners in the Common Elements. The indemnification provided by this Article VIII shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any statute, agreement, vote of members of the Association or disinterested members of the Board of Directors or otherwise, both as to action in his official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office. Such right to indemnification shall continue as to a person or entity who has ceased to be Declarant or a member of the Board of Directors, officer of the Association or a member of such

ORIGINAL DIM

064-01-0881'

committee, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of such person or entity.

ARTICLE IX

Definition of Terms

The terms used in these By-Laws, to the extent they are defined in said Declaration, shall have the same definition as set forth in the Declaration of Condominium for Creekwood Condomiums recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Montgomery County, Texas, as the same may be amended from time to time. The term "member", as used in these By-Laws, means "Unit Owner" as defined in the Declaration.

In the event of any conflict between the terms and provisions of these By-Laws and the Declaration, the provisions of the Declaration shall control. These By-Laws shall not be amended or altered in any manner inconsistent with the Declaration.

Monthly

\$ 833  
100  
50

833  
108

100  
50  
125  
250

750  
334

2,083

171  
542  
88

\$ 6,417

\$ 62